Communicating with Nature Spirits

Messages from the Devas and Wee Folks

With Assistance from Theresa Crabtree

Copyright © 2012 by Theresa Crabtree The contents of this book may be shared freely.

Publications by Theresa Crabtree

All paperbacks available at amazon.com or can be purchased at: http://www.lulu.com/spotlight/theresacrabtree

PAPERBACK

Mayan Messages: Daily Guide to Self-Empowerment

Based on the Mayan Tzolkin calendar, this 384 page paperback offers 260 inspirational messages guaranteed to take the reader to new heights of awareness. Read them freely online at: http://mayanmessages.wordpress.com
Available in paperback and eBook.

Feng Shui: Creating Places of Peace in the Home, Office and Garden

Reference guide for using gemstones, objects, essential oils, colors and shapes as a means to create a balanced flow of chi energy in your home, office and garden.

Gardening with Nature Spirits

Not just for gardeners! This fascinating book delves into how to create abundance in all areas of your life with the assistance of unseen beings from other realms.

eBOOKs

Create Your Reality: Setting Intentions
Field Guide for Those Left Behind
Four Point Coning Sessions
Klutter Kontrol

COMING SOON!

The Soul Connection: Tools for Transformation

Contents

Communicating with Nature Spirits	4
Foreword	6
Message from the Devas	7
How to Communicate with Devas	12
Dowsing	14
Communication Steps	15
How the Devas can assist you	17
Fairies, Slyphs and Other Wee Folks Our Roles	
Our Rules	
Our Needs	23
Our Hopes	24
The Importance of Sacred Space	26
Share the Bounty	28

Communicating with Nature Spirits

This booklet has been created to assist those who would like to communicate and work with Nature Spirits. The Devas, Fairies and other Beings of Light are nearby, waiting for you to call upon them for insight, pleasure and inspiration. They cannot assist with your evolution or desires unless called upon to do so.

Whether your goal is to create a garden, sacred space or wanting to learn more about their Realm, they are available to assist and co-create with you.

All Realms affect each other. When there is imbalance and dis-harmony on one Level, it creates imbalance in the surrounding Realms. Thus, they are here to assist you in gaining inner peace, to balance the areas of Nature where you reside and in your relationships with each other.

Your inner peace creates less stress in their environment. Thus everyone benefits when working together as one unit. Although the Devas are serious about their work of maintaining life forms that help sustain the balance of Nature, they are also playful, creative and highly imaginative when it comes to creating new species.

Devas have been on Earth since before its inception. They are the creative force behind every thing that is physical form. They *are* the God-Force that many of you pray to when asking for assistance with things pertaining to Nature and the physical realm. You shall learn more about them in the pages that follow.

The Fairies, Sylphs, Gnomes, Leprechauns and other Wee Folks live in cultures similar to Humans. Each has their own bearing on Nature, affecting the balance of all things. Like you, they have free will and are responsible for monitoring their own behavior and how they affect their relationships, society, Nature and the universe.

For centuries, many of the Wee Folks have been at odds with Humans and the other Unseen cultures. Yet within each society there are now individuals who want to set aside their differences and work together to regain balance in Nature and to create peace on earth.

We are excited that you have shown up, with your curiosity piqued and your interest in co-creating sacred spaces in harmony with Nature.

Many blessings to you,

Theresa Crabtree and the Nature Spirits

Foreword

For years, I have been fortunate to communicate with Beings beyond our Veil of vision. This came through dedicated effort to release fears and change behaviors that kept me bound in the Illusion that "what you see is all there is."

It is my desire to share what I have learned with you and to instill within you the knowledge that you can do the same and more. Perhaps you already connect consciously with unseen Beings. Know this is a blessing. Nurture and cultivate your communication with all Beings. They are here to assist in our evolution, which also affects their growth and ability to love unconditionally. That is the goal and main purpose for this paradise we call Earth.

In the beginning, there was no separation between Humans, Devas and other Nature Spirits. We worked together, played together and enjoyed the fruits of our creations. It was greed and competition that began the downfall of the "Garden of Eden." We are in a time now where many on both sides have put down their swords and reached out with open hearts to once again embrace and join together.

This booklet is dedicated to the Devas, Angels, Ascended Masters, Cosmic Brothers and Beings, both seen and unseen in all Realms who have guided and protected me on my Path.

Thank you! Thank you! Thank you!

Reverend Theresa "Tre Charah" Crabtree

Message from the Devas

We wish to thank you for your interest in our Realm. In many ways we are like you, for we come from the same Source. As you look around Nature, you see our creations. Before Earth was created, we were. Many places existed before Earth and we were there.

Our role is to create the physical plane. We initially existed, like you, as one drop of Light in the essence of Source. There came a moment when many chose to "descend" from source in various stages. This happened over an extended period of time. For many eons, we did not exist in physical form. Amongst us, many chose to make further explorations and came up with the concept of physicality. This had never been done before, but we excitedly set about to find a way to do so.

Creation schools were set up as we came together and began the first experiments into individuation. At times we would create on our own, then join in Council to determine what we would co-create. There were many wonderful ideas, some which worked well and others that gave us much entertainment, even though they did not serve well.

As time lapsed, it was decided to create various worlds. This gave us special places to experiment with our creations and to see how they would interact with each other. We would see something in our mind, then "will" it into creation. Initially, there was much chaos, similar to what you can expect in a class full of young children who are given free reign in an art supply store.

Colors were selected by playing with frequencies of light. Molecules were created and moved about in every conceivable fashion to create creatures, rocks and planets. In the beginning, there was no life force in these creations. This came much later when worlds and planets were established among the galaxies.

For you see, before order was created, there was much chaos. Planets collided, gravity was unknown, inbreaths and outbreaths did not exist as we understood it when we were one with Source. All these things were created by us in the Devic Realm.

Through generations, the creation schools became more consolidated. Some schools focused solely on creating planets and galaxies, devising rules that would diminish chaos. The creators of each physical place would decide the general function and properties of each individual space (such as a star), as well as how a group of places, such as a galaxy, would function and interact.

This did not all happen in the "twinkling of an eye" as some historians would like to convince you. The creation period from initial Source to now took such an enormous amount of time in relation to your time-space quadrant that your mind could not grasp the amount of zeroes if written in years.

Our goal was not to get the deed done, but to enjoy the journey. An enormous amount of pleasure came during this process. Because we are not bound by emotions or competition, nothing was ever deemed a failure, although most of what was created was left at the drawing board.

You are now living in one of the successful places that we created. This compilation known as Earth was created by the forces of myriads of Devas who came together sharing many of the facets that were successful in their various creations. Most of what you experience on Earth was first tested, used and explored on other planets and in other galaxies. This is one of the reasons why Star Beings from many other cultures are so interested in your evolution. They/we are your creators and predecessors.

Do not misunderstand us to say that we are God. We, like you, are a fragment of original Source. Some of you remember being a Starseed from other planets. Some of you remember your roots from the Angelic and Devic Realms. This does not make any of you more special than another. It is simply a choice that was made before your incarnation on this plane.

One of the unique features that have been used for eons and in many places is for us, the creators, to enter into our own creation. In order to have a full experience of separation from Source, amnesia was chosen upon entry into this Realm. A "buddy" system was set up to be sure no soul was eternally lost in the amnesia. These are called "soul groups." Members of the group filter in and out of lifetimes, helping each other to "stay on track." Often, when a Human meets a member of their soul group, there is a recognition.

There are many levels of soul groups. First, there is the inner circle consisting of a small number of souls who incarnate together in many life cycles. Then there is a large group who come and go intermittently. Other groups overlap for various purposes. It is all quite complex and would boggle the Human mind. Just know that you are connected to a myriad of souls, both on and off planet.

As this time of evolution prepares for a great Transition, many have come to observe and participate. For you see, on Earth, many of us in the Devic Realm have chosen to enter the world we created. Perhaps you are one of us? It is similar to the theatre. We created the stage, the playhouse, the backdrops, the costumes and wrote the play. We then chose to be actors, sometimes playing the lead role while other times being supporting actors.

We are here now to support those who wish to experience physicality with remembrance of their true Source. Many of us in the Devic Realm have a vested interest in Earth, for we were the initial creators of all that you experience, both physical and non-physical. There are others of us who have

a concern for what is happening on Earth. For you see, your thoughts and many of your actions affect the other worlds we have created.

Many of you already understand that nuclear weaponry affects other places and spaces. We have permission from the Councils to assist Humans in stopping this practice. However, even among the "enlightened" ones on Earth, "negative" thoughtforms create just as much chaos. Thus, we are motivated to assist any of you who are ready to evolve to a higher frequency of love and kindness.

Understand that the Devic Realm, through the creation schools and with the permission of the Councils, created everything you experience in Nature. Each plant, the color of the sky, every water molecule, all living beings and their interactions are a culmination of our life work.

Throughout your history, many animal and plant species have evolved and disappeared. There are several reasons why this happens. Earth is an experimental laboratory. Many of the living species never interacted before and frankly, they did not blend well together.

Then there were natural catastrophic occurrences that created havoc on various species, such as the fire, brimstone and ashes from volcanoes, comets and space objects crashing onto the surface of the Earth, solar flares and such. In some instances, Human's actions have created genetic mutations and the disappearance of many species of plants, animals and insects. This causes an imbalance in Nature. One reason why new species are appearing on the Earth is to re-balance Nature.

Please know that we do exist and look forward to deeper communication with you. Not only are you our family, coming from the same Source, but we designed the bodies and environment in which you live. We love you. We are you and look forward to our Integration in a future time. Thank you for coming to Earth to play your role and be a part of the Grand Experience we call Life.

We are proud of what we have created and excited to share what works with others, on Earth and beyond.

The Devas

How to Communicate with Devas

For those of you who are gifted with psychic abilities, it is quite easy to reach us. Call on us and we will be there. Others may sense our presence yet doubt whether a connection has been reached. Most Humans do not and will never believe in our existence. Know that all is well and each of us is on our own Path of discovery and awakening.

In the chapter that follows, we will tell you more about who we are, how we operate and how we can work together. The remainder of this chapter is devoted to those who sense our presence, believe in our existence and wish to connect with us.

First, understand that we reside in a different Realm, which is why most Humans do not see us. In order to see us and to connect clearly through telepathy, our frequencies need to be in alignment. Communication with us is like a radio, unless you tune into a specific frequency, you cannot pick up a radio station. When you begin to get close to the proper channel, you begin to pick up static until the frequency matches and you can hear clearly.

Likewise, in order to communicate clearly with you, we must be on the same frequency. This can happen in three ways. The Devas you are trying to reach must lower their frequency, you must increase your frequency or what happens most often is a combination of both. This is what happens when a psychic "channels" information, she changes her frequency to match the vibration of the Being she is attempting to communicate with.

Matching frequencies requires a tremendous amount of energy and unless you have experience allowing the natural flow of Earth/Sky energy through your body, you would be wise to limit your initial communications to fifteen minutes.

Another way to reach the Devic Realm is through meditation. Be sure to drink at least a glass of water before you begin. Your body is like a battery and is much less efficient when your cells are low on water. Using whatever breathing exercise suits you best, remain in a comfortable position, focusing your attention and intention on our connection.

Ask your Higher Self and Angelic Guides to protect you, allowing only those of the Brotherhood of Light to be allowed in your presence. We wish to advise you not to practice in the use of the Ouija board and to be wary of other methods, including dowsing, which we will address later. These are methods that ornery lower frequency spirits can use to trick you.

When you have successfully made a connection with us, you may feel goose pimples or a vibration go through your body. Some experience ringing in the ears or can "hear" us telepathically. You may notice a fragrance, especially of flowers or an unusual taste in your mouth. Others use automatic writing or typing as a means of communication.

Every person has one or more heightened physical sense. Thus, if you tend to hear sounds that others can't hear, it is likely you will be able to hear us more than smell the fragrances we emit or to visually see us.

Do not despair if you cannot sense our presence. With practice, you will learn to focus your attention, increase your vibratory rate and connect with us.

Know that we are close to Pure Love and would never ask you to do anything that is harmful to yourself or others. If you have an impulse to do harm or hear advice that does not feel right, know that you have tapped into an ornery spirit. Demand that it leave your presence immediately, never to return. Do not engage with these Beings for they can be quite annoying and create chaos. This is why a prayer for protection is of utmost importance when entering a state of meditation.

DOWSING

One excellent form of communication with us is through the use of dowsing tools, accompanied with your intuition. If you are new to dowsing, consider purchasing Theresa's publications on this topic or visit

http://www.lettertorobin.org for a free download of the booklet, Letter to Robin: A Mini-Course in Pendulum Dowsing by Walt Woods. We recommend that you practice dowsing for several months before relying on the results. In addition, always pay attention to your intuition and gut-instincts, for your body is the best monitor of what is right for you in each moment.

When you want to connect with the Devic Realm, the Angelic Realm, the Ascended Masters, Cosmic Beings of Light, Beings residing on the other side of the Veil or the Higher Selves of other Humans, dowsing tools can assist with this communication. We offer the following suggestions; feel free to adapt whatever method works best for you.

COMMUNICATION STEPS

- 1. Drink water, wear comfortable clothing, sit or lie in a comfortable position, choose a time when you feel emotionally balanced and are likely not to be interrupted.
- 2. Ask your Higher Self and Spirit Guides to protect you during this time, allowing only the right and proper Beings into your presence during this session.
- 3. If you are using a dowsing tool, ask the tool to show you a "yes" answer when the connection is made.

- 4. Begin to breathe, chant or use mudras to get into a meditative state. Welling up feelings of gratitude and love will help to increase your vibratory rate.
- 5. Hold the intention of this meeting clearly in your mind. Call in the Beings of Light you wish to communicate with. Sometimes repeating the name three times will help you to focus, thus allowing us to "hear" your request.
- 6. Do not be overly concerned about calling in the "right" members, trust that once we know your agenda, only those needing to be in attendance will remain.
- 7. Even if you don't feel a connection, know we are present. Initially, it may be good for you to talk out loud to us. Often, Humans who are not focused tend to have scattered thoughts, making it hard for us to have a reasonable conversation.
- 8. Ask your questions. Those of us in the Devic Realm hold the blueprints to anything that is in physical form. The Angelic Realm holds the knowledge of all this Is, Was and Will Be on Earth and can access the Akashic Records to answer any question your Higher Self permits them to respond to. They are of the highest integrity and "closest to Source" from your perspective.
 - The Ascended Masters can assist you with Earthly problems, especially those related to emotions, for they have been in Human form and understand what you are going through. Your Cosmic Brothers can assist with questions related to what is happening in the Cosmos. Many of them are currently incarnated on Earth in Human bodies, often as "walk-ins."
- 9. Be mindful of your energy level and keep your sessions from 15-60 minutes. Initially, limit your time to around 15 minutes, for there may be a huge energy drain on your body unless you already operate at a high frequency. You can always return at a later date for future conversations.
- 10. Close the session as if you were in a Board Meeting. Thank all who were present and then say good-bye. It is important that you disconnect from each Being or else an energy drain can occur, making you tired.
- 11. Re-hydrate and eat protein to increase your stamina. Although you may not notice, a lot of energy flows through you during these sessions.

How the Devas can Assist You

There are a myriad of ways that we of the Devic Realm, as well as all other Realms, can assist you. Call us in with your focused intention, powered by your passion, and we will be there in the twinkling of an eye.

Understand that we, the Brotherhood of Light, are here to assist with your upliftment. We choose not to work with those who have dark, low frequency agendas. That is our choice, for like Humans, we have free will. We also sit in Council with your Higher Self and the Higher Selves of those who would be immediately affected by your requests. We will present them with your request and possible ways we can answer your call, however, the Higher Self of each individual has the final say in the matter.

Also be aware that when you change your mind, it may take awhile for what we put into motion to abate. For instance, if you have asked to be guided to a new job, we will set whatever circumstances are necessary into motion to make this happen. If you change your mind, there could be a disruption and you may lose your current job or doors to other employment that we were opening to you may suddenly close.

Dream your highest dream while working on releasing fears and undesirable belief codes. This will allow you to create the reality you desire. With empowerment, state your requests, realizing we are now making it happen. No request is too small or too large. Call on us as often as you want. We have no time burdens and are able to be in many places at the same time.

It matters not who you "call in" for we work together as a team. On our plane of existence there is no separation such as you experience on Earth.

Although there is much that we can do together, we are not "residents" on Earth. The actions must begin with you, requesting our help. This is part of the law of "free will."

The following is a list of ways we can assist you. It is by no means exhaustive or conclusive. Ask for anything and if your Higher Self is in accordance, we will put your request into motion. Keep a vigilant eye, for often your blessings arrive in unexpected ways that you may not recognize.

Gardening questions of any kind: layout of the land, what, when, where or how much to plant, questions related to the needs of each plant from planting a seedling through the harvest and how to prepare your meals.

We can offer suggestions of where to place features such as birdbaths, paths, labyrinths, medicine wheels, seating and dining areas.

We can assist with choosing colors and furnishings when decorating the home, office and garden.

Ask for protection of your land from unwanted Beings and energies, both in the Seen and Unseen Realms.

We can help clear, negate or divert unwanted negative energies, ley lines, thoughtforms and underground waterways.

We can be a liaison of communication between you and the animal Realm.

We can also be a liaison with ancient guardians on your land. Seek specialized help if you have ornery spirits who create havoc and will not leave the property. They have free will and we cannot force them to leave. However, you, as the new occupant, have the power and ability to request their removal, but may need the assistance of a professional to keep you safe. During a session such as this, we can be called in to help.

With your permission, it is a great honor for us to bestow a blessing and increase the energetic frequency of your home, land, work and school locations.

When entering pockets of negatively charged energies, you may request that we bless and recharge the location. Your will be done, after receiving permission by the Council overseeing that location.

We are also here to offer you abundance in many forms. Ask and we will insert ideas into your thoughts and put into motion whatever means is possible to make your request a reality.

13

Fairies, Sylphs and Other Wee Folks

Greetings, we are here as representatives of the cultures that you commonly call fairies, sylphs, gnomes, leprechauns and others too numerous to list here. If you find it too remarkable to believe in our existence, then take the following advice as though we are ambassadors from the Seen world. Like animals, insects and plants, we prefer to be treated with respect and wish that our habitats be left undisturbed by Human hands and machinery.

Similar to Human cultures, each of our cultures has a differing set of opinions, rules and desires. Within each culture, we are made up of individuals, each having free will and our own set of beliefs. So, when we speak to you, know that we are speaking of highest integrity, yet in generalizations, focusing on the good of all. For more information on a specific culture, choose to "tune into" our leaders or research authorized documents written or orally stated by our chosen Human spokespersons.

OUR ROLES

The roles of each kingdom is wide and varied. Some have specific jobs to perform, while others are here simply for the pleasure of living in this magnificent Realm.

In the beginning when the Earth was initially formed and began the process of habitation of living entities, we all were united as one. There were no boundaries of separation such as who is better than whom. There were no shields of invisibility, for there were no wars or dissention.

The current situation of separation came about as greed and competition escalated. Anger became the deciding factor in some separation situations. Survival was another reason for the current state of affairs.

It has become evident to all cultures in each of the Realms that we must now work together to increase the frequency on Earth or face annihilation and relocation to other planets. That would be a sad day for all of us.

Thus, we have set aside our differences and in many instances, now allow Humans to see us and to communicate with us in order to build better communication and friendship, as we once had in the days of old.

We acknowledge the frailties and wrong-doings of our ancestors and those of us in existence today. We forgive and allow unconditionally the rights and respect due to the Human Realm and offer our hands and hearts in friendship, loyalty and love.

Together we can re-create what we had initially on Earth, although it will never be the same since many of the flora and fauna have undergone tremendous changes, both in your Realm and in ours.

We honor those who have gone before us, for their acts of courage and the integrity of their choices, especially to those who laid down their lives for the betterment of All.

OUR RULES

We wish to work hand in hand with our brothers of the Human Realm, but many things must occur before this can be so. First, we apologize for the wrong-doings and animosity from those in our Realm from our ancestors to modern times. It is our hope that we can put the war behind us and move forward together in peace.

Second, we request that those who read this take an oath of honor to do all in their power to assist everyone, in all Realms living on Earth and beyond. This includes the lowliest of the low and the mightiest of the might, no matter what their agenda is. This does not mean that we wish for you to endorse them, but to fully recognize that each of us came from the same Source and one day we will return to the Oneness from whence we all came. What we are asking is for us to reunite and to unconditionally love all living Beings, in all Realms.

Third, it is our hope that you do all you can to lessen your fears and belief codes that hinder you from doing what you know is right, in every situation. We wish that each of you have the courage and integrity to speak up and inform your friends, family, neighbors and governmental leaders in regards to issues that affect each and every one of us.

Fourth, we hope that you will choose to be our spokesperson. We are unseen by many, disbelieved to exist by most, yet still have needs that must be met in order for us to continue to survive and thrive in this Realm. It matters not that you speak to others of our existence, for our needs are the same as yours.

OUR NEEDS

Stop the unnecessary removal of trees, bushes and undergrowth.

Stop the use of herbicides and pesticides that choke the life out of all of us.

Stop the unnecessary spraying of chemicals into the air, including chemtrails and factory residue.

Stop polluting the waterways with toxins that should never have been created in the first place.

Leave cloning and DNA modifications in the hands of the Devic Realm.

Use only necessary items, which would close many factories and industries that create only harm. Specifically we are referring to plastics and toxic waste from nuclear weaponry and power plants.

Simplify your lives. Many have grown fat and unhealthy by using automated vehicles instead of working and shopping in areas they can walk to.

Treat animals with kindness, whether they are your pets, work helpers or future meal.

Follow your passion.

Walk with integrity.

Stop idle chatter, speaking only high vibrational words of love and kindness.

OUR HOPES

In order for all of us to survive the current onslaught of insanity that pervades on Earth, we must all lay down our swords and unite as one.

There are many dark forces at work, in all Realms on Earth and beyond that have a dark agenda, with the goal of creating dis-harmony, dis-ease and chaos on Earth. Their days are numbered, yet it is up to all of us to work together if we wish to see the Earth continue in a healthy, physical form.

It is our wish that you open your eyes and hearts to accept us as your brothers, choosing to work together for the betterment of All.

Many of you who believe in us treat us and our culture as though we are cutesy, flying around aimlessly all day. Although we are often portrayed as playful, know that we are hard at work trying to re-balance our mishaps, as well as those performed in other Realms, including yours.

Fairy and Wee Folks conferences, books and articles are in abundance more than ever. We ask that you make good use of these events to share our concerns and needs with others in your Realm. We need your assistance. It is imperative that we work together to create balance in all areas of concern on Earth.

Due to advanced technology, the ecosystem is in danger of collapse. Due to the advent of television and the ease of transportation, families are scattered across the planet. You have lost your tribe, the power of your existence.

Reclaim your voice in government. You have discovered that the majority of your governments are dangerous and worthless, having enslaved instead of empowering you. Restructure your governments, sit in council and listen to the voice of reason.

Treat all with honor, respect and dignity. We too have learned our lesson and are repentant and striving towards unconditional love of all. It is our hope that we can unite and work together to make Earth the paradise it once was.

Thank you for listening. The Wee Folks

The Importance of Sacred Space

It is imperative, especially during this time of acceleration, that each person takes time daily for rest, relaxation and respite. Having a place set aside for this purpose helps make this possible.

Your sacred space can include an altar, seating or reclining area, candles, incense, music, gemstones and whatever makes your heart sing. It should be a place set aside from active areas, whenever possible. If there is no space you can set aside in your home, then consider a quiet location outside or at a nearby church. However, it is best to have this space available every day and anytime you need it.

When you enter this space, you are telling the uni-verse that you are here, for a purpose and removing yourself from the busy-ness of the day's activities.

The purpose of this sacred space is to allow yourself time to think clearly, to set goals, to set the intentions of the day, to rebalance and to role-play situations of anticipated future events. It is a time for you to reflect on your day and your life. It is a time to ask for guidance. It is a time to co-create with Beings from the Other Side, choosing the experiences you wish to create in the future. It is a time to choose the reality you wish to create.

Many wander through this world aimlessly, never taking time to focus on what they wish to experience. Most do not consciously monitor their thoughts, words or actions, simply reacting to whatever circumstances surround them. Emotions are accepted as they come up, without recognition that to some extent, one chooses what they wish to experience and can consciously choose to act rather than react to others and situations that arise.

Daily meditation and quiet time will settle the mind, allowing each person to:

- **♥** take control of their life
- ♥ plan their life
- **♥** choose how to react
- ♥ discover what is of importance
- ♥ find their passion
- ♥ live life to the fullest

Begin today to make this a priority and watch the magic unfold!

Share the Bounty

We are our brother's keeper. What happens to one, affects all throughout the uni-verse. Never forget how important you are. Each of us is a living library, a page in the book called Source. We are a part of creation that chose to incarnate on Earth to experience all that she has to offer.

When you come to a realization of who you are, share your knowledge and wisdom with others. When you grow food or know others who have an abundance, share with others. When you have time and energy to spare, assist those who need assistance. For it is in giving that we receive.

What can better sum up this booklet than the prayer of St. Francis of Assisi?

Lord, make me an instrument of your peace. Where there is hatred, let me sow love; where there is injury, pardon; where there is doubt, faith; where there is despair, hope; where there is darkness, light; and where there is sadness, joy.

O Divine Master, grant that I may not so much seek to be consoled as to console; to be understood as to understand; to be loved as to love. For it is in giving that we receive; it is in pardoning that we are pardoned; and it is in dying that we are born to eternal life. Amen